
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 7, 2025 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3879 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the properties located at 716 Emerson Street and 742 Church Street

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2025-17 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for properties located in the 2000 block of South Nelson Avenue in the Town of Beloit

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2025-18 approving a three-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey
Map for properties located IN the 3300 Block of South Bartells Drive in the Town of Beloit

 Attachment

 4.c. Consideration of a Final Subdivision Plat of Blackhawk Reserve Plat 2 in the Town of Beloit
 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Zoning Map Amendment - 3113 Prairie Avenue
Zoning Map Amendment - 1885 and 1895 Gateway Boulevard
Ordinance Amendments to implement the Comprehensive Plan

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Annexation - 2111 E Ridge Road
Certified Survey Map - 1100 Broad Street
Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map - CTH X in the Town of Turtle
Updates to the Zoning, Architectural Review, and Sign Ordinance

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, May 21, 2025

 

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 21, 2025

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3348967/05-07-2025_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3348843/PC_Staff_Report__ZMA-2025-10__716_Emerson_and_742_Church_Street.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3349200/PC_Report_-_CSM-2025-09__2000_Block_of_S_Nelson_Ave__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3351710/PC_Report_-_CSM-2025-10__3300_Block_of_S_Bartells_Dr__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3348853/PC_Staff_Report_-_FS-2025-02__Final_Plat_of_Blackhawk_Reserve_Plat_2__TOB_.pdf


** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - May 21, 2025

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, May 7, 2025 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners Anderson, 
Winkelmann, Jacobsen and Flesch were present.  Commissioner Abarca and Councilor Day 
were absent.  
 

2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
2.a. Election of Chairperson 

Commissioner Anderson nominated Commissioner Ramsden to be Chairperson.  
Commissioner Winkelmann seconded the nomination.  The nomination was approved, 
voice vote (5-0). 

2.b. Election of Vice-Chairperson 
Chairperson Ramsden nominated Commissioner Anderson to be Vice-Chairperson.  
Commissioner Winkelmann seconded the nomination.  The nomination was approved, 
voice vote (5-0). 

3. MINUTES 
3.a. Consideration of the minutes of the April 23, 2025 Plan Commission meeting 

Vice-Chairperson Anderson made a motion to approve the Minutes, seconded by 
Commissioner Jacobsen.  Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).  

4. PUBLIC HEARING 
4.a. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3877 amending the Zoning District Map of the City 

of Beloit for the property located at 229 W Grand Avenue 
Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked if they have to get a permit each time that they want to 
have liquor sales.  Julie Christensen explained that liquor sales is currently not allowed 
at all in C-1, Office.  The applicant would like to have retail sales including alcohol and 
food truck, which is currently not allowed. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 
The applicant, Marco Chavez, indicated that he had purchased the building at 229 W 
Grand Avenue, and that he would like to have his food trucks there and eventually 
open a restaurant. 

3



2 | P a g e  
 

Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Flesch, seconded by Commissioner Winkelmann 
to approve the Ordinance.  Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).   
 

4.b. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3878 amending the Zoning District Map for the City 
of Beloit for the property located at 1520 Emerson Street 
Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

Vice-Chairperson Anderson mentioned that one of the public comments indicated that 
they could operate a bed and breakfast in the current zoning.  Ms. Christensen clarified 
that they could operate a bed and breakfast, but not the number of rooms that they 
are requesting. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if the Plan Commission’s vote was advisory and what 
meeting that would be.  Ms. Christensen indicated that the zoning action would be 
decided by City Council, but the Plan Commission would have the final decision on the 
conditional use permit.  The City Council date would likely be June 2. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden indicated that the Commission had received the public 
comments and had a chance to look them over.  He then opened the public hearing. 
 
Joan Murphy, neighborhood resident, indicated that she is opposed to the rezoning of 
the property.  She feels that it could open up the property to a lot of different potential 
uses that would not be in keeping with the zoning of the existing neighborhood as well 
as the character and historic nature of the neighborhood.  It’s not the bed and 
breakfast she is opposed to, it is the zoning to R-2. 
 
Rick McGrath, neighborhood resident, indicated that he lives two doors down from the 
existing bed and breakfast, and it is not the bed and breakfast he opposed to, but the 
rezoning.  He has seen the property change hands several times in the last 20 years, 
and he is concerned about what happens when it sells to a new owner.  He is wary of 
the rezoning to R-2. 
 
Gretchen Kingsley, neighborhood resident, provided an overview of the history of the 
neighborhood and remarked how special the neighborhood is.  She indicated that 
some people have lived in this neighborhood for generations.  She indicated that she 
is opposed to the rezoning, not the bed and breakfast itself. 
 
Bob Bauer, neighborhood resident, indicated that he has lived in the neighborhood 
since 190.  He went over the history of the house included when it was constructed 
and the use as a Beloit Corporation guest house.  I am concerned that the zoning could 
open up the property to a lot of different things. 

4



3 | P a g e  
 

Tony Bonasera, neighborhood resident and owner of the bed and breakfast at 1810 
Emerson Street, indicated that there were not opposed to the bed and breakfast part 
of it.  He outlined their experience running a bed and breakfast.  He mentioned that 
he had concern about the rezoning, as in the future, you could have multiple units 
there and traffic would increase. 
 
Bob Bauer, neighborhood resident, added to his prior comments.  He was concerned 
with the lack of details in the public notice.  He wondered if they planned to build a 
large building on the site, as the property goes all the way down to the stadium. 
 
Dan Boutelle, applicant, indicated that there would always be one unit occupied by 
one of the owners.  All of the rooms are on one level and have a bathroom.  We are 
only applying for the rezoning as that was what staff recommended.  He indicated that 
their intent it to run a bed and breakfast, prepare breakfast on-site with the owner 
that’s living there and looking to honor the spirit of the Beloit Corporation Guest 
House.  We’re hoping that it’s a business retreat destination.  He indicated that the 
property needs a lot of work, and they are willing to meet with the neighbors on-site. 
 
Nick Dimassis, neighborhood resident, spoke in favor of the bed and breakfast.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Flesch, seconded by Commissioner Winkelmann 
to lay over the item so that the applicant could meet with the residents.   
 
Commissioner Flesch indicated that the applicant indicated that he would meet with 
the residents.  He also asked if that extra room is going to make or break the deal.  
Without the sixth room, the application could be approved with a rezoning. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Anderson said that it is a good idea but he hesitates to lay it over, as 
it is Plan Commission’s job as an advisory board to the City Council to make a decision. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen said that she is happy to see the residents coming out and that 
she does not agree with laying it over.  She thinks it is appropriate, as it is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and that it is Plan Commission’s job to vote on the 
application submitted. 
 
Commissioner Winkelmann said that by laying it over, the plan could change.  They 
may decide that the zoning isn’t needed, just the conditional use piece.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden indicated that he was against rezoning the property to R-2.  He 
feels that when an entire neighborhood is zoned single family, it should stay single 
family.  Residents should have an expectation that if they are living in a single-family 

5



4 | P a g e  
 

neighborhood, it’s going to stay single-family.  That is one of the benefits of living in an 
established neighborhood. 
 
Motion to lay it over failed, roll call vote (2-3). 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Flesch, seconded by Vice-Chairperson Ramsden to 
deny Ordinance No. 3878.   
 
Commissioner Jacobsen indicated that she does not agree to deny.  She indicated that 
they brought forth a plan that meets the needs of the Comprehensive Plan.  To do 
what they want to do, they need R-2 zoning. 
 
Commissioner Anderson indicated that he supported the plan, as submitted.  
Commissioner Winkelmann indicated that he did not support the rezoning. 
 
Motion to deny carried, roll call vote (3-2). 
 

4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2025-16 approving a Conditional Use Permit to allow a 
bed and breakfast inn at 1520 Emerson Street 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing.   
 
Dan Boutelle, the applicant, asked if he was to amend his application to reduce the 
room count to five, maybe that would get rid of most of the worries.  Ms. Christensen 
indicated that you can’t really amend the application at this point, but Plan 
Commission could approve fewer rooms as part of the conditional use permit. 
 
Matt Finnegan, one of the partners in the bed and breakfast, indicated that one of 
main reasons they went forward with six rooms is it would be a little bit more money.  
He explained that they want to run a high-end establishment.  We could drop it down 
to five rooms if people would go along with that. 
 
Tony Bonasera, neighborhood resident, said that he hoped that whatever stipulations 
were put on him would be put on this bed and breakfast.   
 
Tom Morgan, one of the partners in the bed and breakfast, indicated that he would 
live at 1520 Emerson and if the zoning is the issue, we can forget about that.  Anyone 
is welcome to come and take a look at what they are doing. 
 
Rick McGrath, neighborhood resident, expressed concern about what would happen 
to the property in future years if the property was not maintained.   
 

6



5 | P a g e  
 

Brad Trewyn, Beloit resident, asked if the conditional use permit would stay with the 
property.  Ms. Christensen explained that the conditional use permit stays with the 
property as long as the use does not lapse.   
 
Gretchen Kingsley, neighborhood resident, asked how do we keep the neighborhood 
safe.  She has a child with special needs.  They are an adoptive and foster family, so 
they have kids that are nonverbal.  She wanted to know if there would be any 
requirements for what can happen on the property, as it runs all the way down to the 
stadium.  She wants to make sure the fence stays intact. 
 
Beth Bonasera, neighborhood resident, said that in defense of bed and breakfast 
owners, generally they work very hard to keep their property nice because they’re 
having guests, so she wouldn’t be concerned about the property being kept up. 
 
Frank McKearn, one of the partners in the bed and breakfast, said that he appreciated 
all of the comments tonight.   
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion was made by Chairperson Jacobsen, seconded by Vice-Chairperson Anderson 
to approve Resolution 2025-16 with the amendment to change the approved use 
from a Bed and Breakfast Inn to Bed and Breakfast Lodging.  Motion carried, voice 
vote (5-0). 
 

4.d. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for the property 
located at 1806 Sutler Avenue 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked whether the bypass lane would be required for the 
drive-through use.  Ms. Christensen answered that it would. 
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 
Kevin Rucker, representative for the applicant, summarized the application.  He 
indicated that the driveway on Sutler Avenue was adjusted due to the size of the 
building, but he will work through that issue with Engineering.  He indicated that since 
they will have different hours, there should not be a conflict. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked about the signage being proposed.  He questioned 
whether both businesses were going to have signs on each side of the building.  Ms. 
Christensen explained that since you may not be able to see both businesses when you 
are coming from different directions, they want to advertise both businesses on each 
side of the building. 

7



6 | P a g e  
 

 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch wanted to ensure that the Landscape Ordinance would still be 
followed in regards to landscape strips.  Ms. Christensen explained that it would. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Winkelmann, seconded by Commission Jacobsen 
to recommend approval of the Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for 
the property located at 1806 Sutler Avenue.  Motion carried, voice vote (5-0). 
  

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Julie Christensen gave an update on prior Plan Commission items.   
 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Community Development Director Julie Christensen provided a summary of the items 
scheduled for future Plan Commission meetings.   
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion was made by Commissioner Flesch, seconded by Vice-Chairperson Anderson to 
adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried, voice vote (5-0).  Meeting was adjourned at 8:36 PM. 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

 

8



 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date: May 21, 2025 

Agenda Item:  3.a. 

File Number:  ZMA-2025-10 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Pete Woodkey 
 
Owner:  Beloit College Park LLC 
 
Address/Location:  716 Emerson and 742 Church Street  
 
Applicant’s Request:  Amend the Zoning District Map from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions 
District to R-1B, Single Family Residential District for the properties located at 716 Emerson 
Street and 742 Church Street 
 
Staff Analysis 

 
Project Summary: Pete Woodkey, on behalf of Beloit College Park LLC, has submitted 
applications for review and consideration of Zoning Map Amendments for 716 Emerson and 
742 Church Street from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, to R-1B, Single Family 
Residential. 
 
Request Details:  The property owner wishes to rezone these parcels to R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District, with plans to sell the properties for single-family residential use. The 
current zoning, PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, does not allow the properties to be 
used as residential. The R-1B, Single-Family Residential District is primarily intended to 
accommodate single-family detached dwellings on moderate-size lots, at typical densities of 3 
to 7.25 units per acre. The district is intended to be applied in low-density residential 
neighborhoods that are predominantly developed with single-family detached dwellings and in 
areas of the community where similar development patterns are desired. The properties are 
planned for Established Neighborhood in the current Comprehensive Plan, which specifies that 
R-1B, Single-Family Residential District zoning is a compatible zoning classification in this land 
use category. As such, a Comprehensive Plan Amendment is not needed in order to rezone this 
property to R-1B, Single-Family Residential District.  

Public Notices:  On May 7, 2025 and May 14, 2025, notices were published in the Beloit Daily 
News.  Mailed notices were sent out to property owners within 150 feet of the parcel on May 
15, 2025.  Staff has not received any comments on the application.  
 

9



Surrounding Uses:  To the north and west of the subject property lies Beloit College, zoned PLI, 
Public Lands and Institutions District, while to the east and south are single-family homes, 
zoned R-1B, Single-Family Residential District. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan recommends Established 
Neighborhood uses for the subject property. This designation includes residential uses. 
Therefore, this proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 
as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission is 
required to make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The existing uses within the general area of the subject properties are institutional uses 
owned by Beloit College and single-family residential uses. The subject properties were 
originally single-family homes before Beloit College acquired them for college-related 
uses.  The new owner intends to restore these properties to single-family use. 

  
2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  

The zoning classifications within the area of the subject properties include PLI for Beloit 
College uses and R-1B for adjacent residential uses.  

 
3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 

classification.  
Under the current PLI zoning district classification, single-family residences are not 
permitted. Although the subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted under 
the existing zoning, the applicant is seeking R-1B zoning to rehabilitate and sell the 
properties to be used as single-family homes.    
 

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property. 
This area of the city is fully developed. Recent activity includes the rezoning and sale of 
717 and 725 Chapin Street, which were previously used by Beloit College and have since 
been zoned to single-family residential use. Additionally, the College has demolished a 
building adjacent to 716 Emerson Street and completed renovations to the Morse 
Library. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map 
Amendment to change the zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions 
District, to R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, for the properties located at 716 Emerson 
Street and 742 Church Street. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Ordinance. 

10



LOCATION MAP  

 

 

11



 
12



 
13



 
14



 
15



 
16



 

 
 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
May 15, 2025 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Pete Woodkey, on behalf of Beloit College Park LLC, is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment to 
rezone 716 Emerson and 742 Church Street in the City of Beloit from a Public Lands and 
Institutions District to a Single-Family Residential District (PLI to R-1B). The following public 
hearings will be held regarding this application: 
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, May 21, 2025, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Monday, June 6, 2025, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
 
 
 

We are interested in your opinion. * 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and submit 
them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to the 
attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You 
may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone.  
 
 

 

17

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


 

Mailing List 
 

Max H. Yount 
745 Church St 

Beloit, WI 53511 
   

John Timothy Leslie 
737 Church St 

Beloit, WI 53511 
   

William Wieland 
1650 E Ridge Rd 
Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

Beloit College Board of Trustees 
700 College St 

Beloit, WI 53511 
 

   
Natalie D. Gummer 

805 Church St 
Beloit, WI 53511 
   

Corey Smith 
811 Church St 

Beloit, WI 53511 
 
 

Gary K. Weinkauf 
1822 Emerson St 
Beloit, WI53511 

     
     

    

18



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3879 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 
19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described land is hereby changed from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, to R-1B, 
Single-Family Residential District: 

Lot 8, Block 27, Original Plat of Beloit and the South half of vacated Emerson Street lying north and 
adjacent thereto:  except Parcel “A” on Plat of Survey Document No. 2276177 recorded December 
19, 2024. Also, Parcel “A” on Plat of Survey Document No. 2284542 recorded May 8, 2025. a/k/a 716 
Emerson Street. 

Lot 7 and North 25 Feet of Lot 6, Block 27, Original Plat of Beloit; Also, Parcel “A” on Plat Of Survey 
Document No. 2276177 recorded December 19, 2024. Excepting therefrom Parcel “A” on Plat of 
Survey Document #2284542 recorded May 8, 2025. a/k/a 742 Church Street. 

All being part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 36, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., of the 4TH P.M., City of Beloit, 
Rock County, Wisconsin. 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2025. 

 
City Council of the City of Beloit 
 
 
  
Kevin D. Leavy, Council President 

 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2025 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2025 

01-611100-5231-  

19



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 21, 2025 

Agenda Item:  4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2025-09 

General Information 
Applicant:  Combs & Associates, Inc. 
Owner:  Michael Echeverria 
Address: Parcel Numbers 6-2-2258.18 and 6-2-2258.19 in the 2000 Block of South Nelson 

Avenue in the Town of Beloit 
Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit 
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 
Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to reconfigure 
parcel numbers 6-2-2258.18 and 6-2-2258.19 in the 2000 block of South Nelson Avenue for a 
three-unit multifamily residential building. The proposed Lot 1 is 0.29 acres (approximately 
12,575 square feet). The parcels are zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential District in the Town of 
Beloit, and the owner is working with the Town on a zoning change. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the east, west, north, and south of the subject parcels is 
zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential District, in the Town of Beloit. To the south is also zoned B-
1, Restricted Business District, and I-1, Light Industrial District, in the Town of Beloit. To the 
northeast of the subject parcels is zoned M-2, General Manufacturing District, in the City of 
Beloit. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map shows that these parcels are planned for Established Neighborhood uses, which 
is consistent with what is being proposed. However, land use cannot be considered when 
reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state law.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents. No 
concerns or comments were received. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial CSM for parcels 6-2-2258.18 and 6-2-2258.19 located in the 2000 block of South 
Nelson Avenue in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 

20



  

ATTACHMENTS:  Town Zoning Map, City Zoning Map, Certified Survey Map, Application, and 
Resolution. 

21



  

Town of Beloit Zoning Map 
 

 

22



  

City of Beloit Zoning Map 
 

 

23



  

24



  

25



  

RESOLUTION 2025-17 
 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP  
FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED ON THE 2000 BLOCK  

OF SOUTH NELSON AVENUE IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map of parcels 6-2-2258.18 and 6-2-
2258.19 located in the 2000 Block of South Nelson Avenue in the Town of Beloit, containing 
0.29 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOTS 8 & 9 OF BLOCK 3 OF SPYREAS ADDITION SITUTATED IN THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, T.1N., R.12E., OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF 
BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map of 
parcels 6-2-2258.18 and 6-2-2258.19 located in the 2000 Block of South Nelson Avenue in the 
Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 21st day of May, 2025. 

 
Plan Commission 

 
  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

26



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 21, 2025 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2025-10 

General Information 
Applicant:  Kristin J. Belongia PLS (R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc.) 
Owner:  Town of Beloit 
Address: Parcel Numbers 6-2-450.700B and 6-2-131.004 in the 3300 Block of South Bartells 

Drive in the Town of Beloit 
Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit 
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a three-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 
Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to reconfigure 
parcel numbers 6-2-450.700B and 6-2-131.004 in the 3300 block of South Bartells Drive to serve 
a future residential subdivision development. The proposed Lot 1 is 9.68 acres (approximately 
421,763 square feet). The proposed Lot 2 is 12.12 acres (approximately 528,128 square feet). 
The proposed Lot 3 is 18.60 acres (approximately 810,224 square feet). The proposed Lot 2 
corresponds to the Final Plat of Blackhawk Reserve Plat 2, which is on the agenda for review. 
This Final Plat on the proposed Lot 2 is for the creation of 32 new single-family lots. The 
proposed Lots 1 and 3 are planned for future phases of the development. The parcels are zoned 
A-1, Farmland Preservation District, I-1, Light Industrial District, and R-1, Single-Family 
Residential District, in the Town of Beloit. The Town is in the process of reviewing a rezoning of 
the parcels entirely to R-1 to facilitate the single-family development. However, the Town’s 
zoning processes have no bearing on the City’s review of the CSM. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  North of the subject property is zoned I-1, Light Industrial 
District. To the east and south is zoned R-1, Single-Family Residential District. To the west is 
zoned A-1, Farmland Preservation District and I-1, Light Industrial District. All of these 
surrounding properties are in the Town of Beloit, and subject to Town zoning. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map shows that these parcels are planned for Established Neighborhood uses, which 
is consistent with what is being proposed. However, land use cannot be considered when 
reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state law.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents. No 
concerns or comments were received. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot 

27



  

Extraterritorial CSM for parcels 6-2-450.700B and 6-2-131.004 located in the 3300 block of 
South Bartells Drive in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Town Zoning Map, Certified Survey Map, Application, and 
Resolution. 

28



  

LOCATION AND TOWN ZONING MAP 
 

 

29



  

30



  

31



  

32



  

33



  

34



  

RESOLUTION 2025-18 
 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR PROPERTIES 
LOCATED IN THE 3300 BLOCK OF SOUTH BARTELLS DRIVE IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map of parcels 6-2-450.700B and 6-2-
131.004 located in the 3300 Block of South Bartells Drive in the Town of Beloit, containing 
40.41 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
three-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

A REDIVISION OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 42-231, RECORDED AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 2254017, AND OUTLOT 2 OF THE BLACKHAWK RESERVE – PLAT 1, 
BEING PARTS OF THE NE 1/4 & SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 AND PARTS OF THE NW 1/4 & SW 
1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 12, BEING ALSO PARTS OF OUTLOTS 12-3 AND 12-4 OF 
THE ASSESSOR’S PLAT OF BELOIT TOWNSHIP, ALL IN T.1N., R.12E., OF THE 4TH P.M., 
BELOIT TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached three-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
of parcels 6-2-450.700B and 6-2-131.004 located in the 3300 Block of South Bartells Drive in the 
Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 21st day of May, 2025. 

 
       Plan Commission 
 
   

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

35



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  May 21, 2025 

Agenda Item:  4.c. 

File Number:  FS-2025-02 

 
General Information 

 
Applicant:  R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc.  
 
Owner:  Blackhawk Reserve (Joe Contarino, Manager) 
 
Address/Location:  South of Philhower Road and north of Garden Prairie Intermediate School 
along Bartells Drive in the in the Town of Beloit (Parcel No. 6-2-450.007). 
 
Applicant’s Request: Final Subdivision Plat (32 single-family lots) 
 
Staff Analysis 

 
Plat Approval Process:  R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. on behalf of Blackhawk Reserve (Joe 
Contarino, Manager) has submitted an Application for Review of a Final Subdivision Plat and the 
attached Final Plat of Blackhawk Reserve Plat 2 for 12.12 acres south of Philhower Road and 
north of Garden Prairie Intermediate School along Bartells Drive in the in the Town of Beloit. 
This land is located beyond the city limits but within the City’s extraterritorial plat review 
jurisdiction. The subdivision of land requires approval of a Preliminary Plat, followed by 
approval of a detailed Final Plat, which must substantially conform to the layout of the 
Preliminary Plat. A recorded Final Plat creates the lots and may include the entire Preliminary 
Plat area or phases. The Preliminary Plat of Blackhawk Reserve was approved by the Plan 
Commission on July 20, 2022.  
 

Proposed Lots:  As shown on the attached plat, the applicant has proposed the creation of 32 
new single-family residential lots in this phase. A new CSM has been created and is on the 
agenda for review. It reconfigures the two existing lots into three new lots. Lot 2 will become 
Plat 2 of Blackhawk Reserve, while Lots 1 and 3 are planned for future phases of the 
development. This property is subject to Town of Beloit zoning (R-1), which the applicant has 
indicated has been approved by the Town.  This subdivision will be served by public water (City 
Water Utility) and sewer (Town Sewer Service Area). The plat is within the School District of 
Beloit Turner.  The proposed plat features an extension of Birchwood Drive, along with two 
newly planned streets, White Willow Drive and Aspen Terrace.  
 
Surrounding Uses:  As shown on the attached Location Map, there are residential uses to the 

36



east of the subject property, and agricultural uses to the north and west. Garden Prairie 
Intermediate School is to the south.  The City does not exercise extraterritorial zoning 
jurisdiction and cannot control uses outside of the City. 

 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
recommends Established Neighborhood uses for the subject parcels. However, land use and 
density cannot be regulated outside of the City limits.  
 
Review Agent Comments: A copy of the application has been shared with City of Beloit staff 
and utility contacts. Public Works provided the following comment: As a reminder to the 
subdivider, if City water infrastructure is proposed to serve the subdivision, construction plans 
must be submitted to City Engineering for review and approval. Additionally, the water main will 
need to be looped as part of this phase.  
 
No other comments were received. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the Final Plat of 
Blackhawk Reserve Plat 2 for one parcel totaling 12.12 acres south of Philhower Road and north 
of Garden Prairie Intermediate School along Bartells Drive in the Town of Beloit subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. All of the conditions of approval of the Preliminary Plat remain in full force and effect. 
2. If City water infrastructure is proposed to serve the subdivision, construction plans must 

be submitted to City Engineering for review and approval. Additionally, the water main 
will need to be looped as part of this phase. 

3. The applicant shall record the Final Plat with the Rock County Register of Deeds within 
one year of approval, and shall provide City staff with a copy of the recorded plat. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Final Plat, CSM, and Application. 
 

37



Location Map 
 

38



39



 

40



41



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

42


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2025-468 - Attachment
	2025-469 - Attachment
	2025-470 - Attachment
	2025-471 - Attachment
	2025-472 - Attachment

